
AGENDA 
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

10:00 a.m., Friday, November 15, 2024 
 

EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 & 460 

Topeka, KS 66603 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Minutes of October 18, 2024 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, 
an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items 
for further discussion and consideration. 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  
a. GLI Approval Letters November 2024 
b. GLI Revocation Letters November 2024 
c. BMM Approval Letters November 2024 
d. BMM Revocation Letters November 2024 

2. Internal Control Amendment Approvals 
a. Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals 
b. Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
a. October Monthly Report 
b. October Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino  
a. October Monthly Report 
b. October Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 
a. October Monthly Report 
b. October Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  
a. October Monthly Report 
b. October Revenue Report 

5. Golden Circle 



 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

None 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

None 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 
1. Garrett Rogers, Paralegal 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report  

2. Don Brownlee, Executive Director 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open 
Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-
4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s 
attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to 
protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee 
background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the 
confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances.  

The following items will be discussed during the first executive session:    
1. Background Reports 

The following items will be discussed during the second executive session: 
1. Attorney/Client Privilege  

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – OCTOBER 18, 2024 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
(A.) 

 Chairman David Moses called the October 18, 2024, meeting to order at 
10:00 a.m. The meeting was held at the Kansas Star Casino in Mulvane, 
Kansas. Notice of this meeting was given to the public via the KRGC and 
Public Square websites and the agency’s social media pages. 
Commissioners Brandon Jones, Larry Turnquist, and Mike Fleming were 
also present. Others present included Executive Director Don Brownlee, 
General Counsel Judith Taylor, Director of Security Roger Bailey, Director 
of Gambling DJ Lopez, Director of Casino Operations Rick Wilson, 
Director of IT and Electronic Security Dennis Bachman, Government 
Relations Manager Randy Evans, and other staff.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved to approve the agenda. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE  
September 13, 2024 
MEETING MINUTES 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Fleming (Turnquist) moved to approve the minutes of the 
September 13, 2024, meeting. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
Commissioner Jones abstained from the vote as he was absent from the 
September commission meeting.  

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA  
(D.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to approve the consent agenda 
(four items). Motion carried 4-0.  

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
BOOT HILL CASINO 
& RESORT 
(E.1.a.) 

 Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported: 
• September 2024 revenue numbers compared to September 2023:  
o Total gaming revenue decreased 6.51% 
 General Manager Giardine explained that September 2023 had 

five Fridays and Saturdays compared to September 2024 five 
Sundays and Mondays.  

o Total slot revenue was down 5.55% 
o Table games revenue was down 13.74%  

• September 2024 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $47,737.00 
 Up 67.86% from September 2023 
 Handle was down 47% 
 Hold was up 200% 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $9,544,704.00 
 This was a new record since opening, the previous record was 

December 2023.  
 Up 304.58% from September 2023 
 Handle was up 23% and was also a new record high since 

opening.  
 Hold was up about 233%. 

o September Top Events 
 Ravens vs Chiefs 



 

2 
 

 Chiefs vs Falcons 
 Falcons vs. Eagles  

o September Top Sports 
 College Football was 38.8% of handle 
 NFL  was 38.3% of handle 
 MLB was 16.4% of handle 

• Upcoming Events and Promotions: 
o Weekly Kiosk Games 
o Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
o Gift Giveaways 
o Rushing for Riches eGameboard 
o VIP Promotions 
o Sportsbook Promotions 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events 
o Roots & Boots – November 8  
o ZZ Top – November 23 
o Sara Evans – December 6 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS STAR 
(E.2.a.) 

 
 

Alli Kuplen, General Manager, reported: 
• September 2024 revenue numbers compared to September 2023: 

o Total gross gaming revenue was increased 2.3% 
o Total slot revenue down 3.9% 
o Table games revenue up 37.9% 
 That is attributed to a 24% hold compared to 12% prior year.  

• September 2024 Sports Wagering revenue  
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $267,000.00 
 Up compared to September 2023’s revenue of $51,800.00 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $5,450,000.00 
 Up from September 2023’s revenue of $2,890,000.00 

• September 2024 Sports Wagering 
o $43.6 million was wagered on FanDuel online. 
o $70 million was wagered on FanDuel online. 
o The total handle in retail was $1.6 million for September. This was 

up over $900k from August. 
o The largest wager in retail was a $10,500 straight wager on the 

Buffalo Bills -4.5 over the Jacksonville Jaguars on 9/23. This 
wager was a winner and paid out $20,500. This was also the 
largest payout for the month. 

o Football ruled the betting in retail as College Football had 47% of 
the total handle followed by the NFL with 37%. They were 
followed by Major League Baseball at 12%, WNBA at 3%, 
MMA at 2% and then soccer, golf and tennis around 1% each. 

o UFC306 did great with a handle of over $32k and revenue of 
$26k. This is one of the largest UFC PPV events we have had. 

• Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o Double Down | Friday and Saturdays 
o Spooky Sit and Go Slot Tournament | Thursdays in October | 

5:00pm - 8:00pm 
o Slots & Table Games Spin & Win | Saturdays in October | 

5:30pm - 10pm 



 

3 
 

o Roaster Pan Gift Giveaway | Friday, October 4 | 4p-9p 
o Electric Salt and Pepper Grinder Gift Giveaway | Friday, October 

11 | 4p-9p 
o Tahari Oil and Vinegar holders Gift Giveaway | Friday, October 

18 | 4p-9p 
o Vacuum Sealer Gift Giveaway | Friday, October 25 | 4p – 9p 
o Titanium Almost There Event | Friday, October 25 | 6pm 
o Onyx Almost There Event | Saturday, October 26 | 6pm 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events: 
o 98 Degrees | Arena | Rescheduled for 2024 
o National Final Steer Roping | November 1st, 2nd  

• General Manger Kuplen introduced her staff, Justin Willenbrink 
Director of Table Games, Will Andrisse Director of Slots, Sonya 
Jackson Director of Marketing, Alecia Pray Director of HR, Angel 
Parnell Director of IT, Ashely Hagen Director of Compliance, Scott 
Schroeder Director of Finance, John Distran Director of Facilities, 
Damian Lehman Director of Food and Beverage, Blake Patout 
Director of Surveillance, Shawne Childress Director of Security.  

    
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
HOLLYWOOD 
CASINO AT KANSAS 
SPEEDWAY 
(E.3.a.) 

 Lydia Garvey, General Manager, reported:  
• September 2024 admissions were down 9.6% compared to September 

2023 
• September 2024 revenue numbers compared to September 2023: 

o Total gross gaming revenue decreased 5.4% 
o Slot revenue decreased 3.9% 
o Table games revenue decreased 16.2% 

• September 2024 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $671,176.00  
o An increase of 70.6% compared to September 2023 
o Handle was down $9.7 million compared to September 2023, but 

this is due to September 2023 being a record year with a single 
patron wagering $8.8 million.  

o Retail Sportsbook: Top Sports 
 College Football was 28% of handle 
 NFL was 46% of handle 
 MLB was 15% of handle 

o The most wagered on event in the retail sports book were the 
Chief games. 

o Digital Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $762,605.00 
 An increase of 44.3% compared to September 2023 
 Handle was up 27% compared to prior year. 

o Digital Sportsbook: Top Sports 
 NFL was 38% of handle 
 College football was 22% of handle 
 MLB was 22% of handle 

o The most wagered on event in the digital sportsbook were Chief’s 
games. 

• Recent/Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o September 27 – 29 – NASCAR Race Weekend 



 

4 
 

 General Manager Garvey explained that the Race Weekend 
was on of the best they have had in many years from a 
revenue standpoint; table games drop on Saturday night 
was the second highest it has been post-COVID and the 
coin-in for the weekend was above average compared to 
other weekends of the same month.  

o October 5 - $100K VIP Trick ‘R Treat 
o October 12 – VIP Jacket Giveaway 
o Tuesdays in October – Massive Gold Rush 
o Wednesday, October 9, 16, and 23 – Spooky Hour Hot Seats 
o Thursdays in October - Hollywood Lucky Ladies 
o Fridays in October - $50K Freaky Friday 
o Saturdays in October – Get Rich or Bewitched 
o November 1 – Turkey Hi-Lo 
o November 11 – PENN Heroes Veteran’s Day Bonus. 
o Responsible Gaming Month  
o Well-o-Ween Team Member Health Fair 
o Team Member Trunk or Treat 
o Champion Sponsor for the Kansas City Kansas Police 

Department’s Police Athletic League Event. 
   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS CROSSING 
CASINO 
(E.4.a.)  

 Jeff McKain, General Manager, reported: 
• September 2024 admissions decreased 10% compared to September 

2023 
• September 2024 revenue numbers compared to September 2023: 

o Coin in increased 1% 
o Table games drop decreased 18% 
o Net gaming revenue was up 1.3% 

• September 2024 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: -$12,758.00  
 Down compared to September 2023’s revenue of $25,526.00 
 Retail wagers were $1,079,762 vs $478,052 in 2023, an 

increase of 129%.  
o Digital Sportsbook Taxable Revenue: $3,363,712.00  
 Up compared to September 2023’s revenue of $255,528. 
 Digital wagers were $42,593,060, down 5.7% compared to 

prior year. 
 Handle was 46% College Football, 32% NFL, 10% MLB. 
 The top sports by winning wager are College Football, NFL, 

and the President’s Cup.  
 Largest winning wager was $14,761 money line wager between 

the Buffalo Bills and the Baltimore Ravens.  
 Largest losing wager was $17,000 money line wager between 

the Jackson Jaguars and the Cleveland Browns.  
• Events and Promotions:  

o September 
 Casino Hot Seats every Monday. 
 Kiosk games on Tuesdays. 



 

5 
 

 Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
 Pick-And-Win table games promotion Fridays. 
 VIP event in the Corral on Saturday the 21st. 
 Strike it Rich promotion on Saturdays. 
 Casino gifts on Sunday. 

o October 
 Casino Hot Seats every Monday. 
 Kiosk games on Tuesdays. 
 Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
 Hot Seats every Thursday. 
 Monster Smash promotion on Fridays. 
 VIP event in the Corral on Friday the 25th. 
 Casino gifts on Sunday. 
 Outdoor concert “Hairball” on the 5th and Josh Blue on the 26th.  

   
HISTORICAL HORSE 
RACING FACILITY 
LICENSEE 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
GOLDEN CIRCLE 
(E.5.a.)  

 Scott Beeler, Golden Circle Representative, reported:  
• Mr. Beeler introduced Dawn Trent of Golden Circle and GC Charities 

board members Jeff Longwell and Terry Newman. 
• Mr. Beeler reported that there was a delay with construction due to 

supply issues and the opening date is now projected for November 
2025.  

• The licensing process is ongoing.  
• Chairman Moses thanked Mr. Beeler for Golden Circle staff making a 

tour of the facility available for KRGC staff and commissioners.  
• Chairman Moses asked if Tim Merrill is the general manager of the 

construction project or if he is the projected general manager of the 
facility. Mr. Beeler confirmed that Tim Merrill is the projected 
general manager of the facility. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS 
– OLD BUSINESS; (F.) 

 There was no old business. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS 
– NEW BUSINESS; 
BOOT HILL CASINO 
& RESORT LAND 
TRANSACTION (G.1) 

 Executive Director Brownlee presented a summary of the anticipated land 
transaction explaining that Boot Hill Casino is entering into an agreement 
to sell a parcel of land adjacent to the casino to a local businessman to build 
a hotel on the property. Executive Director Brownlee stated that no action 
will be required from the Commissioners as a result of this transaction. 
Executive Director Brownlee further explained that The United Wireless 
Arena is next door to the casino and is owned by the City of Doge City. 
City leaders see a need for additional hotel space in Dodge City, specifically 
they would like to see additional hotel space in the proximity of the Arena. 
Since the casino owns all the land surrounding the Arena, the casino has 
become a partner in this planning with the City of Dodge City. Boot Hill 
Casino has agreed to sell a parcel of land that the casino currently owns that 
is adjacent to the Arena and the casino. In the agreement, the casino will 
sell the land to a local developer for purposes of hotel construction. The 
agreement will bring people to both the Arena and the casino. As part of the 
transaction, the hotel will guarantee that rooms will be provided to the 
casino for promotions and casino VIP patrons. The Kansas Lottery is aware 



 

6 
 

of the transaction and have no concerns with the sale of the land. This is 
brought to the Commissioners attention so that they can stay fully informed 
about what is going on around Boot Hill Casino.  
 
Chris Reedy, President and CEO of Butler National Service Corporation, 
was available to answer questions.  
 
Commissioner Fleming asked when it is anticipated that the hotel will be 
open. Mr. Reedy explained that they are hoping to break ground in 
December and take a year to build the hotel.  
 
Commissioner Jones asked what brand of hotel will be built. Mr. Reedy 
stated that it would be a Best Western.  
 
Commissioner Turnquist asked what the size of the hotel will be. Mr. 
Reedy answered that there would be 101 rooms. 
 
Commissioner Turnquist asked if the hotel will share parking with the 
casino. Mr. Reedy explained that the hotel will have its own parking.  
 
Commissioner Jones asked if the hotel will be connected to the casino by 
walkway or any other means. Mr. Reedy responded that the hotel and 
casino would not be connected.  
 
Chairman Moses asked if the land being sold is frontage on the bypass. Mr. 
Reedy confirmed that it is prime land being used, but that the need for the 
hotel and rooms is such a premium they do not want to lose the 
opportunity.  
 
Chairman Moses asked how big the footprint is of the parcel being sold. 
Mr. Reedy responded that it is three acres. Chairman Moses asked if there 
would be other parcels available for sale in addition. Mr. Reedy explained 
that they have been working with the city and the county to try and find 
some retail development. Mr. Reedy stated that they do not have specific 
plans for plots.  
 
Chairman Moses recalled that most, if not all, the agreements with the 
casino developers included a hotel and asked Executive Director Brownlee 
if this hotel replaces, adds, or has no effect on that requirement. Executive 
Director Brownlee responded that it has no effect. Executive Director 
Brownlee further explained that during the initial presentations for Boot 
Hill Casino it was determined that the existing Hampton hotel fulfilled that 
requirement. The proposed hotel operator is a third-party operator and will 
not have any connection to the casino itself.  
 
Chairman Moses asked for clarification on whether the state owns the 
property or the games within the casino. Executive Director Brownlee 
clarified that the state owns the games but not the property that the casino 
sits on. Chairman Moses stated that the state does not own the property 
which allows the casino managers and developers to do this kind of 
transaction. Chairman Moses recalls that in the past they have had to 



 

7 
 

approve the backgrounds of hotel employees would this hotel be subject to 
those background checks. Executive Director Brownlee explained that the 
level of business that the hotel plans to do with the casino qualifies them as 
a vendor and will be required to be backgrounded by KRGC. Chairman 
Moses asked if the hotelier is aware of this requirement. Executive Director 
Brownlee explained that was his main concern when he was informed of 
this transaction and that Mr. Reedy has informed the developer.  
 
Chairman Moses asked if the KRGC legal staff has reviewed the contract 
between the casino and the hotel developer. Executive Director Brownlee 
confirmed that KRGC has received a copy of the contract and that the legal 
staff has reviewed it. Chairman Moses clarified that KRGC is not a party to 
the transaction and any input KRGC may have, is volunteered input that 
does not have to be accepted. Executive Director Brownlee confirmed that 
was accurate.  
 
Commissioner Turnquist said that this will be an arms-length transaction, 
and that the casino will have no interest in the hotel. Mr. Reedy confirmed 
that they will have absolutely no interest and that the deed restrictions will 
make sure that they meet the level of quality. Commissioner Turnquist 
asked if those requirements were not met if they would take some kind of 
action. Mr. Reedy confirmed that they could seek legal action.   

   
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(H.) 

 There were no public comments.  

   
STAFF REPORTS 
(I.1. and I.2.) 

 Garrett Rogers, Paralegal, reported statistics for both the Voluntary 
Exclusion Program and Sports Wagering Exclusion Program for September 
2024 and the Quarterly Illegal Gambling Report. 

• Chairman Moses asked how often the illegal gambling FAQs are 
reviewed. Mr. Rogers responded that there is not a review schedule, 
and it is done on an as needed basis.  

• Chairman Moses asked if there are any FAQs regarding fantasy sports 
wagering. General Counsel Taylor explained that since fantasy 
sports wagering is not a taxed endeavor KRGC differs questions 
regarding fantasy sports wagering to the Attorney General.  

 
Executive Director Brownlee reported:  

• Staff would like to join the Chairman in thanking General Manager 
Kuplen and her staff for hosting this month’s meeting.  

• Executive Director Brownlee also thanked the Golden Circle staff for 
providing the tour of the construction site.  

• Rick Wilson has been promoted to Director of Casino Operations. 
Nathan Keener was selected to replace Rick Wilson as a 
supervising agent at the Pittsburg office.   



 

8 
 

• Hollywood Casino has been in talks with the Unified Government in 
Kansas City to adjust the agreement terms for a hotel in hopes of 
moving forward with a proposal for a third-party hotel in that 
location.  

• DJ Lopez Director of Gambling has reached out to the presidents of 
both eth Kansas Quarter Horse Association and the Kansas 
Thoroughbred Association so that they have KRGC contact 
information as we move forward with possible horse racing in the 
future.  

• Even though parimutuel greyhound racing has not been active in 
Kansas for the past fifteen years, racing is still big business in 
Kansas. The National Greyhound Association and Kansas 
Greyhound Association are both headquartered in Abilene, 
Kansas. The Greyhound Racing Hall of Fame is also there. Also, 
there is an active racetrack. Kansas is reported to be one of the 
largest states in the nation for producing greyhound racing dogs. 
The greyhound association has a Spring and Fall race meet each 
year which brings in dogs and owners from all over the world. The 
Fall race meet is going on this week in Abilene. A group of KRGC 
were there to see some of the races and visit with staff members 
their to stay in touch with the greyhound industry.  

• There is an active greyhound registry in Kansas that KRGC is 
responsible for. In the past years, we have contracted with the 
Kansas Greyhound Association to operate that registry on our 
behalf. In preparation of next year’s contract, Brandi White 
Director of Administration, Audit, and Finance contacted the 
KGA president but was informed that they do not wish to continue 
operating the Kansas greyhound registry. In fact, he provided a 
letter which Executive Director Brownlee read aloud “The KGA 
would like to relinquish control of the Kansas Greyhound Registry at the 
end of the contract period on December 31, 2024. This decision is based on 
the fact that there is currently no live racing in the State of Kansas, and 
therefore, no Kansas-bred greyhounds are being registered. However, there 
are still plenty of greyhounds being raised in our state. Approximately, 75% 
of all greyhounds racing are raced and/or trained here in Kansas. Should 
live racing ever return to the state, we quick and abundant surge in Kansas-
bred registration and we would have to take a look at operational status of 
the registry again. Until that time, we are happy to turn the reins over to 
KRGC.” Executive Director Brownlee stated that with that in mind, 
KRGC will be in the process of picking up that registry information 
from the KGA and will do the Kansas-bred registration in-house 
going forward. We have for the last number of years done the 
Kansas horse registry in-house. There have been registrations in the 
past few years, but it has only been one to three a year.  



 

9 
 

o Chairman Moses asked who currently handles the Kansas-
Bred horse registrations. Executive Director Brownlee 
confirmed that Garrett Rogers paralegal is handling the 
horse registration. Chairman Moses stated that he assumed 
Mr. Rogers would be expanding into greyhounds. Executive 
Director Brownlee confirmed that was accurate. When 
horse racing takes off it may have to be reevaluated.  

• Missouri will have a sports wagering proposition on their ballot. The 
polls for sports wagering indicate that it will pass. There is also a 
proposition to allow a gaming license in the Lake of the Ozarks 
area.  

o Commissioner Fleming said that he had not seen any polls 
regarding the Missouri ballot initiative. Executive Director 
Brownlee said that he could not recall name of the source, 
but that the results were roughly 50% in favor, 24% 
opposed, and the rest undecided.  

• The next commission meeting is scheduled for November 15th at 
10:00a.m. at the Eisenhower State Office Building.  

   
MOTION, 
EXECUTIVE SESSION; 
CONFIDENTIAL 
BACKGROUND 
REPORTS 
(J.1.) 
 
 

 Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved that the Commission go into 
executive session for purpose of reviewing confidential background reports 
presented today by the commission’s security division. In addition to the 
commissioners, the confidential background reports portion included the 
executive director, general counsel, and director of security. The total time 
for the executive session was anticipated to be thirty (30) minutes until 
11:20 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 
discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full record of this 
motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of the Kansas 
Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the executive 
session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The motion carried 
4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at 10:50 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(J.2.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:20 a.m. with 
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 
Commissioner Fleming present.   

   
MOTION, 
EXECUTIVE SESSION; 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT 
PRIVILEGE 
(J.3) 
 
 

 Commissioner Fleming (Turnquist) moved that the Commission go into 
executive session for the purpose of consulting with the agency’s attorney 
on attorney-client privileged communications. In addition to the 
commissioners, the attorney-client privileged communications will include 
the executive director, general counsel. After discussion, the total time for 
the executive session was anticipated to be thirty-five (35) minutes until 
11:57 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 
discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full record of this 



 

10 
 

motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of the Kansas 
Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the executive 
session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The motion carried 
4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at 11:22 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(J.4.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:59 a.m. with 
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 
Commissioner Fleming present.  
 
Chairman Moses explained that there was a two-minute delay in returning 
to open session due to logistical hurdles.  

   
MOTIONS ON 
LICENSE 
APPLICATIONS 
(L.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to deny three license applications, 
conditionally approve one application, and approve the remaining 180 license 
applications from the October 18, 2024, list of background reports referred 
to the commission for action. The motion carried 4-0. 

   
OTHER BUSINESS; 
(M.) 

 There were no other items for discussion or motion.    

   
ADJOURNMENT 
(N.) 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 

______________________  
Larry Turnquist 
Secretary 

APPROVED BY: 
 
______________________ 
David Moses 
Chairman 

 

 Chairman Moses stated that the November 15, 2024, commission meeting 
will begin at 10:00 a.m. for an in-person meeting at the Eisenhower State 
Office Building in Topeka, Kansas.  
 
Commissioner Jones (Fleming) moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
passed 4-0. The meeting was adjourned at 12:01 p.m. 

 



GLI Approved Pending Commission Approval 11/15/2024

Manufacturer File Number ID Number Game Name Version
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-24-112 Mariachi Party (9443) R231043 Mariachi Party V1017241333
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-24-112 PT3139 Mariachi Party N/A
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-24-113 Lucha Champions (9444) R231044 Lucha Champions V1017241314
AGS, LLC (fka Cadillac Jack) MO-73-CAD-24-113 PT3139 Lucha Champions N/A
American Wagering Inc                                  10/30/2024 CS-675-AWH-24-03 Critical Asset Registry
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-07 JCJG-SCH-01 Ju Cai Jin Gui Vertex Schedule 01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-33 1.02-68690 Ju Cai Jin Gui Ingot 1.02
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-37 1.01-68691 Ju Cai Jin Gui Dragon 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-74 1.01-69398 NFL Triple Score 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-76 1.01-69464 Cash Express Dragon Buffalo 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-78 1.01-69369 Hyper Link 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-79 HPL-SCH-01 Hyper Link Vertex Plug-In 01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-81 1.01-69279 Phoenix Link Confucius Say 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-82 1.01-69280 Phoenix Link Queen Chiu 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-83 1.01-69282 Phoenix Link Sensei Master 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-84 1.01-69281 Phoenix Link General Tso 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-85 PL-SCH-01 Phoenix Link Vertex Schedule 01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-91 1.01-69361 House of the Dragon 1.01
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-24-92 HOTD-SCH-01 House of the Dragon Vertex Schedule 01
BetMGM, LLC                                                 10/15/2024 SY-614-ROD-24-03 PAM
Draft Kings                                                       10/30/2024 CS-675-DFK-24-04 Critical Asset Registry
FanDuel                                                             10/14/2024 SY-559-FAN-24-20 Sportsbook
FanDuel                                                             10/14/2024 SY-580-FAN-24-20 PAM
FanDuel                                                             10/30/2024 SY-580-FAN-24-21 PAM
FBG Enterprises OpCo LLC                         11/04/2024 CS-675-FBG-24-01 Quarterly Risk Assessment
IGT MO-21-IGT-24-02 GAME020003WM1P01 WOF Diamond Spins 2x Wilds ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-21-IGT-24-02 GI020003WM1P001 WOF Diamond Spins 2x Wilds ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-68 GAME020001MMQX01 Major Multipliers Poker ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-68 GI020001MMQX001 Major Multipliers Poker ASCENT INSTALL
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-76 UCCF00361.package UC SERIES 3.61 FRAMEWORK N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-76 UCCF00361.zip UC SERIES 3.61 FRAMEWORK INSTALLER N/A
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-77 ASCENT020000S0014 S SERIES ASCENT PACKAGE
IGT MO-73-IGT-24-77 AI020000S0014 S SERIES ASCENT INSTALL
INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-22-INT-24-02 G00812 3 Doves Extra Wilds, Player’s Choice, Random Expands 01.04.18
INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG MO-73-INT-23-18 G00747 3 Doves Only Top Symbols, Players Choice & Expand 01.01.44
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-24-04 HardwareAllowed.dat HardwareAllowed.dat Kansas (6) 5.123.5.8-51.28
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-24-04 HardwareAllowedC.dat HardwareAllowedC.dat Kansas (6) 5.123.5.8-51.28
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-24-04 Param_hardcode.ini Param_hardcode.ini Kansas (6)
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-24-04 Center_hardcode.ini Center_hardcode.ini Kansas (6)
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-10 PCMDAX 16GB CFA PCMDAX 16GB CFA 5.123.5.8-51.28
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-10 Center.exe Center.exe 5.123.5.8



Manufacturer File Number ID Number Game Name Version
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-10 MultiGameGUI.exe MultiGameGUI.exe 5.123.5.8
Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-394-ELE-24-10 Help Files Help Files 5.123.5.8
KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-231-KON-24-06 KGI_M464DSL040WD00 Charms Full Link Leprechaun's Gifts GAME PROGRAM
KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-24-69 KGI_M755DDG031WD09 Money Blast GAME PROGRAM
KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-24-70 KGI_M952DSL030WD00 Chili Chili Fire Hot Rush Green Fever GAME PROGRAM
KONAMI GAMING INC. PA-73-KON-23-01 DIMENSION 43x3 (KGP-2) DIMENSION 43x3 (KGP-2) KGP-2
KONAMI GAMING INC. PA-73-KON-23-01 311259 Monitor (ASSY, MONITOR 43, w/ TS) N/A
KONAMI GAMING INC. PA-73-KON-23-01 311269 Monitor (ASSY, MONITOR 43, w/o TS) N/A
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-02 namb2.x86 SYNKROS 4.0.1005.36 4.00.10.113
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-02 sil-domain.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.36 4.0.10.112
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-02 BoardCollector.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.36 4.0.10.106
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-02 namb2.imx6 SYNKROS 4.0.1005.36 4.00.10.113
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-02 namb2.stm32 SYNKROS 4.0.1005.36 4.00.10.113
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_SynkrosProduct.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 3_iWareCore.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 1_DBObjects.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 2_SharedDBObjectsClient.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 3_SharedBase.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 3_SynkrosReports.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareDispatch.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareMQ.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareQueues.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareScheduler.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareSMSService.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 4_iWareSynk31.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
KONAMI GAMING INC. SY-73-KON-24-09 5_iWareWebInterfaces.jar SYNKROS 4.0.1005.38 4.0.1005.38
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-173-BAL-23-06 A8AD-000-1000 Hot Hot Blazing Lock 1000
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-24-51 A954-000-1010 Wu Jin Pen FuYu Phoenix 1010
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-24-68 AA35-000-1000 Wu Jin Pen Panda 1000
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-24-77 AWI04XWX00B Windows 4X B
Light & Wonder, Inc. - Class III (FKA SG Gaming) MO-73-BAL-24-77 AWI05X0000K Windows 5X K
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-122-SHU-24-01 ShuffleStar_Games_1.0.160_setup.enc1 ShuffleStar 1.0.160
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-122-SHU-24-01 ShuffleStar_Games_1.0.160.xml ShuffleStar 1.0.160
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_UI_2.0.104_setup.enc1 ShuffleStar 2.0.104
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_UI_2.0.104.bin ShuffleStar 2.0.104
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_CardRec_5.0.014_setup.enc1 ShuffleStar 5.0.014
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_CardRec_5.0.014.bin ShuffleStar 5.0.014
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_DMC_2.0.0.0_setup.enc1 ShuffleStar 2.0.0.0
Light & Wonder, Inc. - ETG (FKA Bally West) MO-73-SHU-24-03 ShuffleStar_DMC_2.0.0.0.bin ShuffleStar 2.0.0.0

*Executive Action



GLI Revoked                      Pending Commission Approval 11/15/2024

Revoked 
Manufacturer Revoked File Number Revoked ID Number Revoked Game Name New File Number New ID Number Replace By

Cadillac Jack MO-73-CAD-23-54 (9444) R231044 Lucha Champions MO-73-CAD-24-113 (9444) R148683 01/14/2024
Cadillac Jack MO-73-CAD-23-54 V1017241314 Lucha Champions MO-73-CAD-24-113 V0808231259 01/14/2024
Cadillac Jack MO-73-CAD-23-49 (9443) R148677 Mariachi Party MO-73-CAD-24-112 (9443) R231043 01/14/2024
Cadillac Jack MO-73-CAD-23-49 V0720231421 Mariachi Party MO-73-CAD-24-112 V1017241333 01/14/2024
Konami Gaming Inc. MO-73-KON-23-16 KGI_M952DSL021WD00 Chili Chili Fire Hot Rush Green Fever MO-73-KON-24-70 KGI_M952DSL030WD00 12/15/2024



BMM Approved               Pending Commission Approval 11/15/2024

Manufacturer Game Name Report Number
Galaxy Gaming, Inc. Galaxy Operating System GAG10251KS
AcresManufacturing Company Acres Foundation System ACR10481KS
IGT PINBALL BUY AND PAY 3RMC DRS (GPP) IGTU33291KS
IGT DBL THREE FORTUNE INGOT 3R27L (CHI) IGTU32991KS
Konami Crazy Stuffed Coins Goat KGI14591KS
Konami Bingo Frenzy Stampede Shark KGI14691KS
Konami Bingo Frenzy Stampede Tiger KGI14681KS
IGT DRAGON BOWL FREE GAMES 5R50L CURVE (TOC) IGTU33731KS
IGT PHOENIX BOWL FREE GAMES 5R50L CURVE (TOR) IGTU33751KS



BMM Revoked Pending Commission Approval 11/15/2024

Revoked 
Manufacturer

Revoked Game 
Name

Revoked File 
Number

Revoked ID 
Number

New File 
Number New ID Number

Replace 
By

No Letters



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 
 

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

November 15, 2024 
 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

BH620– Cash Recycler No KAR 112-100-2 / ICS 120.150 
Cash Recycler Approval 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 
 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

November 15, 2024 
 
 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

HW197 – 18+ Job Descriptions No KAR 112-104-2 / Hollywood Job 
Descriptions; Chapter A General Approval 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
November 15, 2024 

 
By: Ryan Deutsch 

 
For the month of October 2024, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 3.21% over 
October 2023.  Total Slot Revenue was down 4.60% and Table Games Revenue was up 11.12%.   

 
For the month of October 2024, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 
$32,700. This is up 56.78% from October 2023.  Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas 
Lottery was ($85,401). This is down 101.17% compared to October 2023.   

 
 
 
 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 
 
• Weekly Kiosk Games 
• Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
• Gift Giveaways 
• Charity Match Hot Seats 
• $150,000 15th Anniversary Prize Wheel 
• VIP Promotions 
• Sportsbook Promotions 
 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  
 

• Roots & Boots – November 8  
• ZZ Top – November 23 
• Sara Evans – December 6 
• Clint Black – Feb 8 

 
 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  October  October  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2024  2023  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines        3,223,385.03   3,379,045.44      13,892,421.16   13,798,968.51 
         

Table games           365,436.30   328,574.21        1,529,621.79   1,776,071.99 
         

Other #                     18.35   143.66                3,263.86   3,142.60 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,588,839.68       3,707,763.31       15,425,306.81       15,578,183.10  

         
State Share 22%           789,544.73          815,707.93         3,393,567.50         3,427,200.28  

         
Local Share 3%           107,665.19          111,232.90            462,759.20            467,345.49  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%              71,776.79            74,155.27            308,506.14            311,563.66  

         
Casino Share 73%        2,619,852.97       2,706,667.22       11,260,473.97       11,372,073.66  

         
   

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



KANSAS STAR CASINO 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
November 15, 2024 

       By: Alli Kuplen 

For the month of October 2024 KSC experienced a 0.15% increase in Total Gross Gaming Revenue compared 
to October 2023. Total Slot Revenue was up 4.09% and Table Games Revenue was down 13.5%. 
 
For the month of October 2024, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery is 
$62.8K which is down to October 2023’s revenue of $206K. Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by 
the Kansas Lottery is $2.8M. This is down from October 2023’s revenue of $4.87M. 

 
Upcoming Promotions & Events 
 

• Double Down | Friday and Saturdays in November | 10:00am – 11:59pm 
• Point Multiplier | Thursdays in November | 10:00am - 10:00pm 
• Slots & Table Games Spin & Win | Saturdays in November | 5:30pm - 10pm 
• Electric Kettle Gift Giveaway | Friday, November 1 | 4p-9p 
• George Foreman Grill Gift Giveaway | Friday, November 8 | 4p-9p 
• Toaster Oven Gift Giveaway | Friday, November 15 | 4p-9p 
• Double Burner Gift Giveaway | Friday, November 22 | 4p – 9p 
• VIP Silent Auction Drawings | Friday, November 29 | 6pm 
• Trees of Hope Voting | Monday, November 25 – Thursday December 19 

 
Upcoming Entertainment & Events 

 
October FanDuel Sportsbook Notes 
 

• $84 million was wagered on FanDuel online. 
• The total handle in retail was $1.5 million for October.  
• The largest wager in retail was a $11,800 straight wager on the Kansas State Wildcats -9.5 over the 

Kansas Jayhawks on 10/26.  This wager was not a winner. 
• The largest winning wager we had was a $9,738.50 wager on BYU Total Points over 24.5 against 

UCF on 10/26.  The winning wager paid out $18,281.00. 
• Football ruled the betting in retail as College Football had 51% of the total handle followed by the 

NFL with 35%.  They were followed by Major League Baseball at 6%, NBA and NHL at 2%, 
MMA and WNBA at 1% and then soccer, golf and tennis around 1% each. 

 
 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         

  October  October  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2024  2023  2025  2024 

         
Electronic gaming machines       10,917,264.12   10,479,932.06       44,200,657.05   43,528,618.16 

         
Table games         2,073,566.25   2,397,077.55         8,431,314.10   7,584,414.35 

         
Other #                      21.71   35.95               10,682.46   8,983.05 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue      12,990,852.08      12,877,045.56        52,642,653.61        51,122,015.56  

         
State Share 22% (Tier 1)**         2,857,987.46        2,832,950.02        11,581,383.79        11,246,843.42  

         
State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**                            -                              -                                -                                -    

         
Local Share 3%            389,725.56           386,311.37          1,579,279.61          1,533,660.47  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%            259,817.04           257,540.91          1,052,853.07          1,022,440.31  

         
Casino Share  73%         9,483,322.02        9,400,243.26        38,429,137.14        37,319,071.36  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

 



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
November 15, 2024 

 
BY: LYDIA GARVEY - GENERAL MANAGER 

 
October 2024 

 
October Admissions 

• October 2024 admissions were down about 1% compared to last year. 

October 2024 Revenue Numbers 

• Total Gaming Revenue came in at $13.6M – an increase of 5.3%  

• Slot Revenue was $12.3M – an increase of 6.2% 

• Table Games Revenue (including Poker) was $1.36M – a decrease of 2.3% 

• Platform Sportsbook Taxable Revenue in October was $226,774 which was a decrease of 53.2%. 

• The Retail Sportsbook lost $7,146 in October. 

Recent/Upcoming Events 

• November 1 – Turkey Hi-Lo 

• November 8 – Championship Football Playoff Giveaway 

• November 11 – PENN Heroes Veteran’s Day Bonus 

• November 16 – VIP Seasons Snuggles 

• November 17 – KC Watch Party & Gameday Tailgate Giveaway 

• November 27 – Holiday Pie Giveaway 

• November 29 – Black Friday Bonus 

• December 3 – Tail Wagging Tuesdays 

• December 4 – Wicked Witch Hot Seats 

 

 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  October  October  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2024  2023  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
   

12,270,105.65   11,548,344.84  
     

48,743,705.09   46,637,741.27 
         

Table games  
     

1,358,218.30   1,389,584.09  
       

5,651,034.73   5,934,958.39 
         

Other #  
                  

24.00   21.00  
               

7,137.84   2,855.44 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

   
13,628,347.95   

   
12,937,949.93   

     
54,401,877.66   

     
52,575,555.10  

         

State Share 22%  
     

2,998,236.55   
     

2,846,348.98   
     

11,968,413.09   
     

11,566,622.12  
         

Local Share 3%  
        

408,850.44   
        

388,138.50   
       

1,632,056.33   
       

1,577,266.65  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
        

272,566.96   
        

258,759.00   
       

1,088,037.55   
       

1,051,511.10  
         

Casino Share 73%  
     

9,948,694.00   
     

9,444,703.45   
     

39,713,370.69   
     

38,380,155.22  
         

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.   

 



 

 
KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

November 15, 2024 
By: Jeff McKain 

 
Kansas Crossing Casino is reporting the following preliminary results for October 2024 vs October 2023. 
   

•      -1.5% Decrease in Admissions 
•          6% Increase in Coin-In 
•      -6.7% Decrease in Table Drop  
•       9.7% Increase in Net Gaming Revenue 

 
Sports Wagering:  
For the month of October 2024, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery reported          
-$46,625 vs $35,592 prior year. Retail wagers were 1,040,764 vs $498,241 in 2023. That is an increase of 109%. 
Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery in October was 438,095 vs prior year of 
$1,236,620. Digital wagers were down 12.6% coming in at 47,650,147.     
 
Promotions + Events  
 October 

o Casino Hot Seats every Monday. 
o Kiosk games on Tuesdays.   
o Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
o Hot Seats every Thursday.        
o Monster Smash promotion on Fridays.  
o VIP event in the Corral on Friday the 25th.   
o Casino gifts on Saturdays.  
o Casino gifts on Sundays. 
o Outdoor concert “Hairball” on the 5th and comedian Josh Blue on the 26th.  

November 
o Casino Hot Seats every Monday. 
o Kiosk games on Tuesdays.   
o Camp 49 promotions every Wednesday. 
o Slot Tournament Friday 22nd and 29th.  
o VIP event in the Corral on Saturday the 9th.   
o Casino gifts on Sundays. 
o Corall events include Jackyl on the 1st and comedian Ben Bailey on the 15th.  

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  October  October  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2024  2023  2025  2024 
         

Electronic gaming machines        2,922,026.47   2,675,547.67      11,900,877.19   11,298,119.46 
         

Table games           241,450.50   208,334.00        1,017,692.50   1,274,002.50 
         

Other #                     11.00   13.00                   645.53   718.45 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,163,487.97       2,883,894.67       12,919,215.22       12,572,840.41  

         
State Share 22%           695,967.35          634,456.83         2,842,227.35         2,766,024.89  

         
Local Share 3%              94,904.64            86,516.84            387,576.46            377,185.21  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%              63,269.76            57,677.89            258,384.30            251,456.81  

         
Casino Share 73%        2,309,346.22       2,105,243.11         9,431,027.11         9,178,173.50  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 
EGM 3,223,385$             10,917,264$               12,270,106$                2,922,026$                          29,332,781$               
Table Games 365,436                  2,073,566                   1,358,218                    241,451                               4,038,671                   
Other # 18                            22                                24                                  11                                         75                                

Total 3,588,840$            12,990,852$              13,628,348$               3,163,488$                         33,371,528$              

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
2010 20,663,987$          -$                                 -$                                  -$                                          20,663,987$               
2011 40,055,280             -                                   -                                     -                                            40,055,280                 
2012 43,886,501             98,855,928                 54,622,687                  -                                            197,365,116               
2013 43,353,504             192,187,166               124,993,721                -                                            360,534,391               
2014 39,906,275             181,079,650               132,036,392                -                                            353,022,317               
2015 40,513,186             181,754,051               142,759,065                -                                            365,026,302               
2016 38,937,088             181,600,677               143,833,330                -                                            364,371,095               
2017 40,222,932             178,105,968               144,582,037                8,206,260                            371,117,197               
2018 41,186,638             182,084,527               148,770,984                32,465,853                          404,508,001               
2019 41,589,906             184,157,835               150,790,865                34,489,213                          411,027,819               
2020 32,971,510             150,355,262               122,114,403                28,620,752                          334,061,926               
2021 43,690,403             172,711,043               124,388,370                33,857,278                          374,647,093               
2022 49,581,344             162,352,371               149,127,943                39,911,158                          400,972,817               
2023 48,228,287             161,224,699               156,512,547                41,140,188                          407,105,721               
2024 47,257,227             159,760,427               162,065,438                38,890,699                          407,973,791               
2025 15,425,307             52,642,654                 54,401,878                  12,919,215                          135,389,053               

Total Since Opening 627,469,375$       2,238,872,258$        1,810,999,659$          270,500,616$                    4,947,841,908$        

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 3,393,567               11,581,384                 11,968,413                  2,842,227                            29,785,592                 
Local Governments 462,759                  1,579,280                   1,632,056                    387,576                               4,061,672                   

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 308,506                  1,052,853                   1,088,038                    258,384                               2,707,781                   
Casino Manager 11,260,474             38,429,137                 39,713,371                  9,431,027                            98,834,009                 

Total 15,425,307            52,642,654                54,401,878                 12,919,215                         135,389,053              

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 
State of Kansas 138,043,262          492,680,575               398,419,925                59,510,136                          1,088,653,897           
Local Governments 18,824,081             67,166,168                 54,329,990                  8,115,018                            148,435,257               

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 12,549,387             44,777,445                 36,219,993                  5,410,012                            98,956,838                 
Casino Manager 458,052,643          1,634,248,071           1,322,029,751             197,465,450                       3,611,795,915           

Total 627,469,375          2,238,872,258           1,810,999,659            270,500,616                       4,947,841,908           

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

October 2024 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending October 31, 2024

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2025

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 

 

      

              
 

642

2267

411

126

498

1

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Sports Wagering
Exclusions

Facility Wagering
Exclusions

Universal
Wagering
Exclusions

Total Number of Exclusions 

Active Exclusions Completed Exclusions

0%

15%

45%

27%

8%

3%
2%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

0-17 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

Age of  SWEP

31

124
142

103

242

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

<1 year 1 year 2 years 5 years Life

Active Sports Wagering 
Exclusion Durations

(Figures do not include completed exclusions)
321

58
79

38

76

193

3
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

SWE Enrollment by Platform*

18 15
21

13
24

11
22

12 16
10

15 16
25

51
57

5255

42

68

36 33
27 28

18

42
36

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

SPORTS WAGERING EXCLUSION ENROLLMENT BY MONTH

2022

2023

2024

Voluntary Exclusion Report 
January 2010 – October 2024 

 
 
 



 
  

 
 

 
                   

      

 

 
 

 
11.05.2024 

62.9%
37.1%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

67.7%

32.3%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.4% 0.7%

24.4%

14.8%
11.3%

3.7%

11.7%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.5%

21.3%

27.8% 26.2%

15.0%

6.1%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

22
18

24
27

24

14

21

31

22

32

24
28

15
20

26 26
22 22 20

24
21 22 23 23

19 17 17

0 0

14 13
17

14

21

10 11
16

11
16

8

19 18
15

11

18
21

10 9
12

24
21

9 11 11 13

20
24

30

7 6

14 16

26

15 15

7

18 18 18
13

10
1312 12

20 18
14

20 19
14 12 14

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 –October 2024 

Voluntary Exclusions = 3,178 
Violation Incidents = 459 (410 individuals) 

 

African Am.
9.4%

Asian/P.I.
15.4%

Caucasian
65.5%

Lat/His
7.8%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.5%

Ethnicity



 

 

 

 

         

    

11/05/2024 

KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons 
December 2009 – October 2024 

Colorado – 6 
Iowa – 5 
Kansas-2,793 
Missouri -262 
Nebraska – 7 
Oklahoma – 57 
Other-48 
 
 
 

  

TOTAL VEPs = 3,178 

 

 

2
 

 

20
 

5 
83 

 

 

 

315 

 

 

 

 1245 

 

 
31 

1 
16 

1 
68 

 

 

 

358 
66 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

187 

 

 

 

 

 

52 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 6 
21 

5 

 

2 

2 

 

47 

2 

 
4 

1 

 2 

23 

11 

8 

 

 

4 

2 

9 

 

 

 
   2 

  
14 

 

 
62 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

1 

5 

2 

5 

 

1 

2 

5 

5 

2 1 

2 1 

5 2 

1 5 

2 

4 

12 

 

 

3 

5 

 

 

1 

 

1 

1 

1 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

1 



All Departments
DeptID All
All Funds Beg. Balance 5,548,212       Beg. Balance 268,188           Beg. Balance 72,212             Beg. Balance 130,509           

Revenue 1,734,900       Revenue 126,439           Revenue 38,209             Revenue 134,275           
Expenses 2,925,426       Expenses 138,432           Expenses 1,648               Expenses 45,624             
End Balance 4,357,687       End Balance 256,195           End Balance 108,773           End Balance 219,160           

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2024 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2025 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
October 
FY2024 

ACTUALS

October 
FY2025 

ACTUALS
$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE

YTD FY2025 
BUDGET

YTD FY2025 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 2,380,743 2,603,455 222,712 9% 541,064 582,570 41,506 8% 3,142,529 2,603,455 -539,075 -17%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% -235,690 0 235,690 -100%
Net Salaries and Wages 2,380,743 2,603,455 222,712 9% 541,064 582,570 41,506 8% 2,906,840 2,603,455 -303,385 -10%

52000 Communication 22,123 9,127 -12,996 -59% 4,980 2,246 -2,734 -55% 38,400 9,127 -29,273 -76%
52100 Freight and Express 399 1,598 1,199 301% 74 288 213 287% 433 1,598 1,164 269%
52200 Printing and Advertising 35 1,003 968 2747% 0 0 0 0% 483 1,003 519 107%
52300 Rents 133,290 129,167 -4,123 -3% 54,230 67,013 12,783 24% 93,717 129,167 35,450 38%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 6,245 18,406 12,161 195% 158 1,310 1,152 730% 18,569 18,406 -163 -1%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 31,017 18,178 -12,839 -41% 4,177 5,422 1,244 30% 83,961 18,178 -65,783 -78%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 23,093 22,563 -530 -2% 7,578 10,621 3,043 40% 0 22,563 22,563 0%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees-Other Services 130,417 163,197 32,780 25% 24,770 25,538 768 3% 172,313 163,197 -9,117 -5%
52700 Fee-Professional Services 9,631 2,572 -7,059 -73% 450 325 -125 -28% 144,350 2,572 -141,778 -98%
52900 Other Contractual Services 3,782 14,598 10,816 286% 0 1,272 1,272 0% 7,348 14,598 7,251 99%
Subtotal Contractual Services 360,031 380,408 20,377 6% 96,416 114,033 17,617 18% 559,575 380,408 -179,167 -32%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 2,900 29 -2,871 -99% 46 15 -31 -68% 0 29 29 0%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 56 859 803 1441% 13 65 52 414% 1,433 859 -575 -40%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 3,546 5,123 1,577 44% 1,450 1,437 -13 -1% 12,985 5,123 -7,862 -61%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 1,269 96 -1,173 -92% 0 0 0 0% 19,953 96 -19,857 -100%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 8,612 6,689 -1,923 -22% 713 3,587 2,874 403% 35,352 6,689 -28,663 -81%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 1,205 15,989 14,784 1227% 71 5,240 5,169 7299% 2,067 15,989 13,923 674%
Subtotal Commodities 17,588 28,785 11,197 64% 2,293 10,344 8,051 351% 71,790 28,785 -43,005 -60%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 47,976 98,482 50,506 105% 7,093 88,066 80,973 1142% 70,100 98,482 28,382 40%

Grand Total 2,806,338 3,111,130 304,792 11% 646,867 795,013 148,147 23% 3,608,305 3,111,130 -497,174 -14%

Cash Fund Balances as of October 31, 2024
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




	A.1 2024-11-15 Agenda
	C.1 Draft Meeting Minutes - October 18, 2024
	D.1.a GLI Approved   11-2024
	GLI Approved - November 2024

	D.1.b GLI Revoked   11-2024
	GLI Revoked - Novmeber 2024

	D.1.c BMM Approved  11-2024
	BMM Approved - November 2024

	D.1.d BMM Revoked  11-2024
	BMM Revoked - November 2024

	D.2.a Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 11_15_2024 Boot Hill
	D.2.b Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 11_15_2024 Hollywood
	E.1.a KRGC REPORT 10.2024
	E.1.b BH - October 2024 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a KRGC Monthly Meeting 11-24
	E.2.b KS- October 2024 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 111524
	E.3.b HW - October 2024 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.a KCC November Submission for KRGC 2024
	E.4.b KC - October 2024 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.7 Aggregated Casino Financials - October 2024 Revenue
	I.1.a Voluntary Exclusion Report 11.24
	I.1.b VEP Data Chart-Ending October 2024
	I.1.c VEP Data Map-October 2024
	Y. Dept by Budget Unit OCTFY25
	Z. November Calendar

